# ORIGINAL

# IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA

SC01-1507

DISTRICT COURT CASE NO.: 99-627

THOMAS D. HALL

JUL 1 6 2001

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

BEACON PROPERTY MANAGEMENT a Florida corporation and ERNEST W.WILLIS, individually,

Appellants,

VS.

PNR, INC., a Florida corporation,

Appellee.

Petitioner's
APPELLEE'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

Submitted by:

Law Offices of C. VINCENT LoCURTO, P.A. 2500 East Commercial Boulevard Fort Lauderdale, FL 33308 Phone: (954) 492-5542

Fax: (954) 489-9993

Attorneys for Appellee

#

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

#### A. Proceedings Below

Plaintiff/Appellee tried its case against Defendant/Appellants Beacon Property Management, Inc. (Beacon) and Ernest W. Willis (Willis) to a jury in the Circuit Court of Palm Beach County, the Honorable Moses Baker, Jr. presiding. The jury trial, including the punitive damages phase, lasted eight (8) days. On December 17, 1998 the jury returned an award of \$1,200,000.00 against Willis individually and \$540,000.00 in damages against Beacon.

Following the trial court's denial of Beacon and Willis' (collectively Appellants) post trial motions, an appeal was taken to the Fourth District Court of Appeals. On April 4, 2001, the Court of Appeals reversed both the compensatory and punitive damages awards which were based upon fraud, deceptive and unfair trade practices, tortious interference and wrongful eviction. On June 5, 2001 the Court of Appeals denied Appellee's motions for rehearing, rehearing en banc and request for certification of conflict. On July 5, 2001, Appellee filed its notice to invoke the discretionary jurisdiction of this Court. Appellee only seeks review of the District Court's decision as it relates to the application of Florida's Deceptive and Unfair Trade Practices Act (DUTPA or Act) Fla. Stat. § 501.201 et seq. (1993).

#### **B.** Statement of Facts

In September 1994 PNR purchased of Goodfellas Italian restaurant and acquired a long-term lease for the restaurant premises. (T-431). When PNR purchased Goodfellas it was a well established going concern with the same chef for four (4) years. (T-426, 406-07). Goodfellas was located on the third floor of a building owned by Ocean One North, Inc. (Ocean One) in a very desirable beachfront location on the corner of Palmetto Park Road and State Road A1A in Boca Raton, Florida. (T-395-96). Ocean One was owned equally by Willis and Matthew Giacomino. Willis is also the owner and principal officer of Beacon. (T-784, 1408).

PNR's decision to purchase Goodfellas was based, in large part, on the statements and representations of Giacomino and Willis regarding a planned renovation of the building. (T-412). Giacomino showed PNR's president, James Robinson (Robinson) an artist's rendering which depicted what the building would look like once the renovations were complete. (T-412-413, PX 60A-R-1275). He also told Robinson that the renovations would cost approximately three hundred thousand dollars (\$300,000.00). (T-417).

After his meeting with Giacomino, Robinson met with Willis to verify and confirm what Giacomino told him. (T-419-20). Willis verified everything that Giacomino said regarding the improvements and assured Robinson that he would

not be responsible for any CAM charges resulting from the improvements. (T-421).

Ocean One hired Beacon, as the management company, and it was responsible for all aspects of the daily maintenance, repair and upkeep of the property. (T-791-93, 798). Beacon actually performed these obligations during the beginning of its contract term. (T-801, 1030-31). Shortly after Beacon took over the management and maintenance of the property the building began to receive code violations from the City of Boca Raton. The building continuously received code violations while under Beacon management and control. (T-801). A city representative testified that, the building amassed some \$280,400.00 in fines from code violations, more than any building in the history of Boca Raton. (T-755).

Following PNR's purchase of Goodfellas, the renovations Giacomino and Willis told Robinson about, never began. (T-441). In fact the condition of the property was deteriorating rapidly. (T-442) During diner hours, when the restaurant was busy, PNR would experience frequent water leaks through the ceiling, tar leaks through the air-conditioning vents, blackouts, elevator failures, power failures and other adverse conditions. (T-443-448). PNR repeatedly notified the owners of the building including Giacomino, Willis, Ocean One and Beacon verbally and in writing about these deplorable conditions and failures. (T-

449-451). Giacomino told Robinson to put his complaints in writing to Beacon since it was responsible the maintenance of the building. (T-452).

On July 1, 1995, as a result of years of neglect by Beacon and dilapidation the north wall of the building collapsed. (T-T-455, 727-8, 792-3, 798-802, 1299, 1305-6). Willis testified to having actual knowledge of the deterioration before the collapse. (T-1465, 1481, 653). The collapse caused the city to shut the building down and declare it an unsafe structure. This resulted in a more than seven month eviction and closure of Goodfellas from which it never recovered. (T-1188-89, 1206)

Important evidence was adduced at trial evidence that Willis' engaged in self dealing and other *ultra vires* acts which were <u>not</u> for the benefit of the corporation. (T-863, 865-69). Giacomino himself sued Willis for self dealing and attempting to freeze him out of Ocean One. Willis ulterior motive was to foreclose the first mortgage he purchased, without Giacomino's consent, in order to freeze Giacomino out of the corporation. (T-866-69, 879-80). Willis was also motivated to extinguish all of the tenants leases on the building since he wanted to sell the property and it was worth more with the building vacant. Willis admitted to Giacomino that it was his desire to keep the building shut down following the

collapse in order to extinguish PNR's lease which would facilitate the sale of the property. (T-847).

#### **SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT**

It is respectfully submitted that the Fourth District Court of Appeals erroneously held that in order to support a damages award under the DUTPA a plaintiff must prove that the unfair or deceptive acts or practices were the defendants "regular systematic way of competition or a habitual or customary action or way of doing something". This holding places an extremely onerous burden on claimants under the DUTPA which neither the statute nor the interpretive case law contemplate.

## **ARGUMENT**

THE DISTRICT COURT ERRED IN HOLDING THAT A SINGLE DECEPTIVE ACT OR PRACTICE IS INSUFFICIENT TO SUPPORT A DAMAGES AWARD THE DUTPA

A. The Court's Decision Conflicts With Other District Court Decisions

The District Court held that in order to prevail on a claim under DUTPA, a claimant must show that the unfair act or practice was the defendants "regular and systematic way of competition", or "a habitual or customary action or way of doing something." (Opinion p. 2).<sup>1</sup> That is, PNR was required to prove that it was

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> This was not Appellants argument on appeal. Their entire argument was that the DUTPA should not be applied to a commercial lease transaction.

Beacon and Willis' regular and systematic practice or habitual or customary action to neglect the properties it maintained. This holding expressly and directly conflicts with the decisions of other district courts of appeal.

In <u>Suris v. Gilmore Liquidating</u>, Inc., 651 So. 2d 1282 (Fla. 3d DCA 1995), an automobile buyer sued a dealer for fraud and violations of the DUTPA in connection with a single car purchase. The Third District Court of Appeals, reversing the trial court, concluded that sufficient evidence existed to create a jury question precluding directed verdict under the DUTPA. Nowhere did the court opine that more than a single car purchase or a single aggrieved consumer is required to maintain an action under the DUTPA. Nor did the Court hold that the plaintiff was required to prove that the defendants deceptive or unfair acts and practices were "regular and systematic" or "habitual and customary".

In Nieman v. Dryclean USA Franchise Company, Inc., 178 F.3d 1126 (11<sup>th</sup> Cir. 1999), the Eleventh Circuit Court of Appeals held that a single franchise purchaser could sue a Florida franchiser under the DUTPA for violating the FTC's Franchise Rule in connection with a <u>single</u> franchise purchase.

In <u>Sarkis v. Pafford Oil Company, Inc.</u>, 697 So. 2d 524 (Fla. 1<sup>st</sup> DCA 1997), gas station lessees sued a gasoline company and its sales representative alleging that the company conspired to supply lessees with inferior grades of gasoline at higher grade prices. The lessees sued for, among other things, violations of the

DUTPA. The Court held "a party who asserts a claim under the statute must prove the existence of an unfair or deceptive act or practice." Id. at 528 (emphasis added). In so holding the First District Court of Appeals noted that "the purpose of the statute is not merely to provide a remedy for an individual but to protect consumers at large from unfair trade practices." Id. Speaking in the singular, the Court expressly acknowledged that an single individual is afforded remedies by the DUTPA. It follows that the same is true for a single transaction.

In Fort Lauderdale Lincoln Mercury, Inc. v. Corgnati, 715 So.2d 311 (Fla. 4<sup>th</sup> DCA 1998), the Fourth District itself held that an individual automobile purchaser was entitled to damages under the DUTPA resulting from the dealer's false representations in connection with a single transaction. The purchaser was not required to prove that it was the dealer regular or customary practice to commit deceptive and unfair acts in connection with its automobile sales.

In Rollins, Inc. vs. Heller, 454 So.2d 580 (Fla. 3d DCA 1984), it was held that homeowners could recover actual damages against a burglar alarm company for violations of the DUTPA in connection with a single purchase of a home alarm system. Again, this was a single transaction and the Plaintiff was not required to prove that the defendant's deceptive and unfair acts were "regular and systematic" or "habitual and customary".

Storage, Inc., 643 So. 2d 22 (Fla. 4<sup>th</sup> DCA 1994) (a specific rule or regulation is not necessary to the determination of what constitutes and unfair or deceptive practice); Anden v. Litinsky, 472 So. 2d 825 (Fla. 4<sup>th</sup> DCA 1985) (corporation and it principal held liable for damages under DUTPA in connection with a single residential real estate transaction); Delgado v. J.W. Courtesy Pontiac JMC – Truck, Inc., 693 So.2d 602 (Fla. 2<sup>nd</sup> DCA 1997) (single automobile purchaser's damages claim against dealer under DUTPA is not barred by economic loss rule).

## B. The Court's Decision is Contrary to the Stated Legislative Intent.

The Fourth District has read the Act quite narrowly which is contrary to the clear legislative intent, as expressed in the Act's liberal rule of construction. In 1993, in order to expand the application of the Act, the legislature broadened the definitions of "consumer" and "trade or commerce". Consistent with this legislative mandate, district courts have applied the Act expansively.

The District Court's holding places an extremely heavy burden on potential claimants which the DUTPA does <u>not</u> require. Pursuant to the Court's ruling it is no longer enough for an aggrieved consumer to prove that they were the victim of an unfair method of competition, or unconscionable, deceptive or unfair trade practice. Consumers must now prove that the defendant's unfair, deceptive or unconscionable acts or practices are "regular and systematic" or "habitual and

customary". The limiting affect this will have on consumers rights under the Act is obvious.

The Fourth District's ruling is also contrary to the stated purposes of the Act which are:

(1) "to simplify, clarify, and modernized the law governing consumer "intended to protect the consuming public and legitimate (2) business enterprises from those who engage in unfair methods of competition, or unconscionable, deceptive, or unfair acts or practices in the conduct of any trade or commerce." § 501.202 Fla. Stat. (1993). The Court's ruling is confusing at best and its reasoning is at odds with that of other District Courts of Appeals as well and its own prior opinions. Requiring claimant's to show a pattern of behavior by the defendant, beyond their own transaction, frustrates and severely limits the purpose of the act and consumer's rights. The effect of the Court's holding will be to eviscerate the very protections the statute is intended to provide. Appellee is aware of no Florida case which has held that a claimant is required to prove habitual, regular or systematic unfair or deceptive acts. Accordingly, it is respectfully submitted that this Court's decision is in clear direct conflict with the cases cited herein and the legislative intent of the Act.

# **CONCLUSION**

For the forgoing reasons Appellee respectfully requests that the Supreme Court exercise its discretionary jurisdiction in this case, pursuant to Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv) and 9.120 and reverse the Fourth District Court's decision and/or clarify the conflict it crates with other district courts' decisions.