### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA

FILED THOMAS D. HALL AUG 0 7 2001

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

### CASE NO.: SC01-1507 DISTRICT COURT CASE No.: 4D 99-627

### BEACON PROPERTY MANAGEMENT, a Florida corporation, and ERNEST W. WILLIS, individually,

Appellants/Respondents,

v.

PNR, INC., a Florida corporation,

Appellee/Petitioner.

#### **RESPONDENTS' BRIEF ON DISCRETIONARY JURISDICTION**

Submitted by:

Law Offices of HARKE & CLASBY LLP Miami Center, Suite 1050 201 S. Biscayne Boulevard Miami, FL 33131 Telephone: 305-536-8220 Facsimile: 305-536-8229

Law Office of Harry J. Ross
 6100 Glades Road, Suite 211
 Boca Raton, FL 33434
 Telephone: 561-482-2400
 Facsimile: 561-482-2602

#### **STATEMENT OF THE FACTS AND OF THE CASE**

As an initial matter, Respondents Beacon Property Management, Inc. ("Beacon") and Ernest W. Willis ("Willis") take great issue with the Petitioner's Statements of Facts, wherein Petitioner improperly goes far beyond the salient facts set forth in the Fourth District's opinion, often misrepresenting key matters in the process. This strategy has long been rejected by this Court for jurisdictional petitions. <u>Reaves v. State</u>, 485 So. 2d 829 (Fla. 1986):

The only facts relevant to our decision to accept or reject petitions are those facts contained within the four corners of the decisions allegedly in conflict. As we explain in the text above, we are not permitted to base our conflict jurisdiction on a review of the record or on facts recited only in dissenting opinion. Thus, it is pointless and misleading to include a comprehensive recitation of facts not appearing in the decision below, with citation to the record, as petitioner provided here.

Id. at 830, n. 3. Accord Hardee v. State, 534 So. 2d 706, 708, n. 1 (Fla. 1988);

White Construction Co. v. Dupont, 455 So. 2d 1026 (Fla. 1984).

Beacon and Willis therefore respectfully request that the Court take no

consideration of the numerous, and often inaccurate, extraneous facts provided by

Petitioner herein.

With respect to the Fourth District's holding on Petitioner's claims against

Beacon and Willis under Florida's Deceptive and Unfair Trade Practices Act,

1

Florida Statutes section 501.201 et seq. ("FDUTPA"), there are two critical facts:

1) Ocean One, Inc. was the landlord of the subject property, and 2) the lease

agreement entered into by Petitioners required the landlord to maintain the

property. In a very simple and straightforward ruling, the Fourth District held that

because Ocean One, Inc., as landlord of the property, was the only party with a

legal obligation to maintain the Ocean One property, Beacon and Willis could not

be held liable under FDUTPA for allegedly failing to maintain those premises:

PNR sued the corporate landlord, two of its investors, and a management company hired by the landlord to superintend the building. . . . The lease required the landlord to maintain the premises. Plainly, a failure to make repairs, allowing the premises to deteriorate to the point that code provisions were violated would be a substantial breach of the lease, entitling the tenant to a number of remedies. A breach of the lease covenant to maintain the premises, however, cannot be charged against anyone but the landlord. The effect of a successful DUTPA claim under these circumstances would be to give the tenant a remedy against third parties for a duty that rests with the owner of the premises.

Beacon Property Management v. PNR, Inc., 785 So. 2d 564, 566-67 (Fla. 4th DCA

2001) (emphasis supplied).

Having determined that neither Beacon nor Willis had any duty to maintain the property, the Fourth District held that the trial court erred in failing to direct a verdict in their favor on Petitioner's FDUTPA claims against them. <u>Id.</u> at 567. The court went on to opine that it would be a slippery slope indeed if every breach of a commercial property lease gave rise to a FDUTPA claim, and that the statute appears to preclude such an action by its own terms. <u>Id.</u> ("We do not read DUTPA to mean that the kind of breaches of commercial leases involved here directly concern consumer protection or Florida's interest in insuring fair methods of competition, not to mention deceptive trade practices."). The court further pointed out that the plain language of FDUTPA appears to require more than a single unfair or deceptive act before liability under the Act can attach. <u>Id.</u> It is important to note, however, that this discussion by the Fourth District had nothing whatever to do with the actual holding of the case -- which was that the only viable FDUTPA claim in this case would be against the landlord, Ocean One, Inc.

Finally, it is both outrageous and fundamentally inaccurate for Petitioner to imply that the Fourth District somehow deemed a directed verdict in Beacon's and Willis's favor proper on grounds not raised by them on appeal. Petition, p. 6, n. 1. While Beacon and Willis did argue that FDUTPA had no application in this commercial leasing situation, their foremost argument was precisely the one accepted by the Fourth District: that because neither Beacon nor Willis had any duty to maintain the premises, *i.e.*, neither was the landlord, they were entitled to a directed verdict on Petitioner's maintenance-based FDUTPA claims.

3

#### **SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT**

The Court should decline to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction in the present case. The Petitioner's entire conflict argument is based on a misapprehension of the holding of the Fourth District Court of Appeal. The Fourth District was clear and concise in its decision that because Beacon and Willis had no legal duty to maintain the property at issue, a verdict should have been directed in their favor on Petitioner's claims against them under Florida's Deceptive and Unfair Trade Practices Act. Ignoring the actual holding by the Fourth District, the Petitioner seeks to convince the Court that conflict jurisdiction is present based on the dicta which follows the Fourth District's finding that Beacon and Willis had no cognizable legal duty here. Respondents respectfully submit that mere dicta should not give rise to conflict jurisdiction in this Court, and the most recent decision of this Court on the issue of dicta and conflict jurisdiction appears to support this assertion.

Nonetheless, the statutory interpretation set forth in the Fourth District's dicta in this case is not in express and direct conflict with any of the appellate decisions cited by Petitioner on the same question of law. It is only through inference and by extrapolating from what is **not** specifically set forth in these opinions that the hint of a possible conflict is even approached. This is simply not

4

a proper basis for discretionary jurisdiction.

Lastly, the strict rules governing this Court's discretionary jurisdiction simply do not permit review of a decision which is purportedly "contrary to the stated legislative intent" of a statute.

#### ARGUMENT

## I. The Fourth District's Opinion is Not in Express and Direct Conflict with the Decisions of Other Florida Appellate Courts Cited by Petitioner

### A. Petitioner Misapprehends the Actual Holding of This Case

Petitioner's conflict argument regarding the Fourth District's ruling on the FDUTPA claims asserted against Beacon and Willis is predicated entirely on an inaccurate reading of the court's well-reasoned opinion. Simply stated, Petitioner seeks herein to avoid the Fourth District's clear holding that because only Ocean One, Inc. (the landlord) had an actionable duty to maintain the Ocean One property, the trial court erred in failing to direct a verdict in favor of Beacon and Willis on Petitioner's claims that they each failed to properly maintain the property in violation of FDUTPA. <u>See Beacon Property Management v. PNR, Inc.</u>, 785 So. 2d at 567 ("A breach of the lease covenant to maintain the premises, however, cannot be charged against anyone but the landlord. The effect of a successful DUTPA claim under these circumstances would be to give the tenant a

remedy against third parties for a duty that rests with the owner of the premises.").

Petitioner instead seeks to obscure the conflict issue by focusing on the dicta which followed the court's holding, wherein the court reasoned that under its reading of the FDUTPA statute, neither Beacon's nor Willis's alleged conduct here would be actionable even if they **were** deemed to have had a duty to maintain the property. See Petition, p. 6-7. Beacon and Willis respectfully submit that the court's superfluous discussion of how this case might have been decided if the facts were fundamentally different is of no moment for the purposes of conflict jurisdiction.

Ignoring the court's ruling on the threshold matter of duty, Petitioner goes on to allege that conflict somehow arises from the Fourth District's "conclusion" that a FDUTPA claim necessarily requires a finding of a pattern or systematic method of conduct by a defendant. <u>See</u> Petition, pp. 6-9. Because this portion of the court's opinion was not the basis for its holding that a directed verdict should have been granted in Beacon's and Willis's favor, however, the correctness of the court's statutory analysis simply does not give rise to an express and direct conflict. The issue of whether or not a pattern of conduct by Beacon or Willis was required (or even occurred) does not even become ripe for consideration absent a finding that either or both had a duty to maintain the Ocean One property. When Petitioner failed to demonstrate such a duty at trial, there was no need to address any alleged conduct by them under the statutory scheme.

The Fourth Circuit's plain holding of "no duty" is unassailable, and the Court should not be misled by Petitioner's desperate attempt to draw attention to matters which have no effect on that holding.

### B. The Dicta Contained in the Fourth District's Opinion Does Not Conflict with the Decisions Cited by Petitioner

While it is plain from the opinion in this appeal that the "methods and practices" interpretation of the statute was not the basis for the Fourth District's holding on the FDUTPA claims, Beacon and Willis nonetheless submit that such a holding would not represent a lack of uniformity with the decisions of other Florida District Courts of Appeal or this Court.<sup>1</sup> To the extent that dicta can ever give rise to conflict jurisdiction, which is not conceded, there is simply no express and direct conflict between the Fourth District's dicta here and the decisions cited by Petitioner that is apparent from the four corners of the respective opinions.

Whether dicta which is inconsistent with the holding of another Florida

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>The Court should take no consideration of the Petitioner's gratuitous citation to several decisions of the Florida Fourth District and the federal Eleventh Circuit (See Petition, p. 8-9), as discretionary jurisdiction based on conflict does not include alleged intra-district conflicts nor state/federal conflicts. Fla.R.App.P. 9.030(a)(2)(iv).

appellate court can give rise to conflict jurisdiction under Fla.R.App.P.

9.030(a)(2)(iv) has been the subject of contrasting rulings in this Court. <u>Compare</u> <u>Sunad v. City of Sarasota</u>, 122 So. 2d 611 (Fla. 1960) and <u>Sweet v. Josephson</u>, 173
So. 2d 444 (Fla. 1965) (permitting dicta to give rise to jurisdiction), <u>with Ciongoli</u> <u>v. State</u>, 337 So. 2d 780 (Fla. 1976) (finding no conflict certiorari jurisdiction based on dicta). Beacon and Willis respectfully submit that to the extent that conflict jurisdiction cannot be created by dicta, the present petition should be denied outright.

Regardless, a review of the four corners of the opinions cited by Petitioner here establishes that the Fourth District's dicta is not in express and direct conflict with any of those cases on the same question of law. <u>See generally</u> Fla.R.App.P. 9.030(a)(2)(iv); <u>Department of Health and Rehabilitative Services v. National</u> <u>Adoption Counseling Services</u>, 498 So. 2d 888, 889 (Fla. 1986) ("As we recently noted in *Reaves v. State*, 485 So. 2d 829, 830 (Fla. 1986), conflict between decisions must be express and direct, i.e., it must appear within the four corners of the majority decision. In other words, so called 'implied' conflict may no longer serve as a basis for this Court's jurisdiction."). The problem with Petitioner's conflict argument here is that not one of the decisions cited expressly or directly ruled on whether FDUTPA claims are legally viable in breach of commercial lease scenarios. Similarly, none of Petitioner's cases expressly or directly address the legal question of whether the inclusion of the "methods and practices" language in FDUTPA requires a finding of more than a single act of deceptive or unfair business behavior. These matters were simply not at issue in any of the opinions cited by Petitioners. Accordingly, the Court's discretionary jurisdiction is not invoked, and cannot be exercised.

The best that Petitioner can do here is to opine that because each of the courts in the cited cases did not expressly accept or reject a "methods and practices" interpretation of FDUTPA, and **apparently** permitted -- without any analysis -- a FDUTPA claim to go forward based on a single transaction, the Fourth District's dicta in this case represents a contrary or conflicting ruling. <u>See</u> Petition, pp. 7-9.<sup>2</sup> This is precisely the type of inferential or "implied" conflict which this Court has rejected as a basis for review. <u>See Reaves v. State</u>, 485 So. 2d 829; <u>Department of Health v. National Adoption</u>, 498 So. 2d 888. The pending petition should therefore be denied.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>Tellingly, Petitioner spends most of his effort discussing what the courts in the cited opinions **didn't** hold or require. <u>Id.</u>

## II This Court does not have Jurisdiction Over a Decision Which is Allegedly "Contrary to the Stated Legislative Intent" of a Florida Statute

Petitioner's final argument for jurisdiction is that the Fourth District's decision here is "contrary to the stated legislative intent" of Florida's DUTPA statute, Section 501.201 *et seq.* See Petition, pp. 9-10. This is not a proper basis for invoking this Court's discretionary jurisdiction, and Respondents respectfully submit that this Court should not take any consideration of this argument.

The limited bases for the exercise of this Court's discretionary appellate jurisdiction are set forth in Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.030(a)(2). Nowhere in this jurisdictional statute is the Court granted the power to review decisions which purportedly run counter to the legislative intent of a statute. *Id.*<sup>3</sup> Accordingly, the present petition should be denied with respect to this particular jurisdictional plea out of hand.

#### **CONCLUSION**

Based on the foregoing, the Respondents respectfully request that this Court decline to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction to hear this appeal.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup><u>Cf.</u> 12A Fla. Jur.. 2d, Courts and Judges § 122 (1998) ([T]he Supreme Court does not have jurisdiction where the contention is that the decision of the district court of appeals is in conflict with a Florida statute."), citing <u>Standard</u> <u>Accounting Insurance Co.</u>, 196 So. 2d 440 (Fla. 1967); <u>Pickman v. State</u>, 164 So. 2d 805 (Fla. 1964).